
REPORT TO CITY COUNCIL 
 

 

DATE: OCTOBER 23, 2013 

 

TO:  HONORABLE MAYOR AND MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

 

FROM: GREG RAMIREZ, CITY MANAGER 

 

BY:  NATHAN HAMBURGER, ASSISTANT CITY MANAGER 

  CHRIS DODD, PUBLIC WORKS PROJECT MANAGER 

 

SUBJECT: CONTRACT AWARD FOR THE AGOURA HILLS RECREATION 

CENTER REHABILITATION PROJECT RE-BID; NIB 13-04 

 

 
On April 24, 2013, the City Council authorized staff to seek bids for the Agoura Hills 
Recreation Center Project Re-Bid; NIB 13-04. The scope of work consists of 
constructing a new 6,500 feet Multi-Purpose Room, support facilities, rehabilitation of 
existing structures, site work, and landscaping at 29900 Ladyface Court.         
 
On October 10, 2013, the City received ten (10) sealed bids for this project. The bid 
results were as follows: 
  

Moment Construction Company, Inc. $7,456.700.00 
Cal-City Construction, Inc. $8,230,000.00 
Sigma Services, Inc. $8,975,000.00 
Robert Clapper Construction Services, Inc. $9,273,000.00 
AMG Associate, Inc. $9,567,000.00 
Morillio Construction, Inc. $9,827,000.00 
T.B. Penick & Sons, Inc. $9,868,871.00 
Kemcorp Construction, Inc. $9,893,700.00 
AWI Builders, Inc. $10,694,500.00 
NSA Construction Group $10,980,000.00 

 
On October 11, 2013, the apparent low bidder, Moment Construction Company, Inc., 
withdrew their bid due to a stated clerical error. 
 
Staff reviewed the bid submittal of the apparent second low bidder, Cal-City 
Construction, Inc., and deemed their bid responsive and acceptable. In addition, staff 
contacted references to discuss Cal-City Construction’s past work, as they have no prior 
working relationship with the City. The references indicated they were satisfied with the 
contractor’s performance, have proven to have the ability to stay on time and on budget.   
The company is based in Cerritos, California and has been in the construction business 
for over 25 years. Having done many projects throughout the Southern California 
region, Cal-City Construction has worked with many cities, school districts, and other 
government agencies, as well as RNT Architects, the project Architecture firm.   
 



On October 15, 2013, staff met with representatives of Cal-City Construction to present 
the City’s project goals, expectations, discuss scheduling, and to allow Cal-City 
Construction to present any issues they foresee with the project.  The meeting was 
successful, with both parties agreeing to move forward.  
 
Staff will be providing project management, along with a contracted construction 
management firm, which will assist throughout the duration of the project. Construction 
is scheduled to commence in early November, taking approximately 48 weeks to 
complete in order to relocate the Community Services staff and programs by the end of 
calendar year 2014. 
 
The proposed construction contract is within the City’s established budget and is 
consistent with the latest project cost estimate provided by RNT Architects. The 
construction of the facility will be paid for through monies set-aside in the Recreation 
Center Fund, several grants, Community Development Block Grant funds, and lease-
revenue bond-proceeds.  
 
It is recommended that the City Council authorize a construction contingency in the 
amount of $905,300 or 11% of the awarded construction cost. These funds would only 
be used as necessary, for construction alternatives, and in the case of unforeseen 
issues that typically arise in construction and rehabilitation projects. Although the design 
team has made its best efforts to anticipate where issues and problems could arise and 
to properly address those, it is common for various issues to arise during rehabilitation 
of an existing building. It is also recommended that the City Council authorize the City 
Manager to approve all change orders related to the construction of this project. This 
will allow staff to keep construction and rehabilitation efforts on schedule, should issues 
arise that require immediate action. Updates on the progress of the construction and 
finances will be brought back to the City Council periodically. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff respectfully recommends the City Council award the contract for Agoura Hills 
Recreation Center Project Re-Bid; NIB 13-04, to Cal-City Contractors, Inc. , authorize 
the Mayor to sign the agreement in the amount of $8,230,000; authorize the 
contingency amount of $905,300; and authorize the City Manager to approve change 
orders related to the Recreation Center project. 
 
Attachment:   (A) Agreement Cal-City Construction, Inc.  
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